



**17-01**

**Proposed by the Executive Committee**

## **CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS**

**Amend Item 6 PRIZES as follows (changes are in bold type)**

6.1. Individual: Prizes shall be the Beacon Challenge Cup, **awarded to the top overall competitor, plus** Gold, Silver and Bronze medals, and prizes for the first twenty sailors. In addition, prizes shall be awarded to the top three girl sailors.

**The Top Girl will be awarded the Helen Mary Wilkes Trophy and the Top Boy will be awarded the Peter Barclay Trophy.**

### **REASON:**

To recognize both genders in the World Championship. These trophies are replacing the two trophies that have been given in practice, the "Optimist Worlds Girl's Trophy" and the "Langkawi Cup". They have been added to the Conditions so that Organizers are clear what is to be presented at the Closing Ceremony.

## 17-02

Proposed by the Executive Committee

### **CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS**

**Amend Item 9 ELIGIBILITY as follows (changes are in bold type)**

- 9.2 Any boy or girl may enter until 31st December of the year in which he or she attains the age of 15 years. Sailors qualified by age to start the event are allowed to finish it. Sailors shall be either nationals or bona fide residents of the country they represent, unless otherwise agreed by the IODA Executive Committee. A sailor who has represented one country at an IODA World or Continental Championship shall not represent another country except in cases of alteration of residence, which cases shall be approved by the IODA Executive. **As per World Sailing Regulations Appendix 3, Item 19.6 (d), IODA Events require competitors to have "World Sailing Eligibility" as defined in Items 19.4 and 19.5.**

#### **REASON:**

To clarify the World Sailing Regulations regarding eligibility that apply to the IODA World Championship.

## 17-03

Proposed by the Executive Committee

### CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST CONTINENTAL CHAMPIONSHIP

**A). Amend Item 10 ELIGIBILITY as follows (changes are in bold type)**

- 10.2 Any boy or girl may enter until 31st December of the year in which he or she attains the age of 15 years. Sailors qualified by age to start the event are allowed to finish it. Sailors shall be either nationals or bona fide residents of the country they represent, unless otherwise agreed by the IODA Executive Committee. A sailor who has represented one country at an IODA World or Continental Championship shall not represent another country except in cases of alteration of residence, which cases shall be approved by the IODA Executive. **As per World Sailing Regulations Appendix 3, Item 19.6 (d), IODA Events require competitors to have "World Sailing Eligibility" as defined in Items 19.4 and 19.5.**

**REASON:**

To clarify the World Sailing Regulations regarding eligibility that applies to the IODA Continental Championships.



**17-04**

Proposed by the Executive Committee

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS**

Amend Item 9 ELIGIBILITY as follows (changes are in bold type)

Add new:

**9.5 When bona fide resident sailors are members of a team they shall not be more than 50% of the sailors of their team.**

**REASON:**

To preserve the national character (nature) of teams.



**17-05**

Proposed by the Executive Committee

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST CONTINENTAL CHAMPIONSHIP**

Amend Item 10 ELIGIBILITY as follows (changes are in bold type)

Add new:

**10.3 When bona fide resident sailors are members of a team they shall not be more than 50% of the sailors of their team.**

**REASON:**

To preserve the national character (nature) of teams.

**17-06**

**Proposed by the Executive Committee**

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS**

**A). Amend Item 7 APPLICATION AND SELECTION OF THE HOST MEMBERS as follows (changes are in bold type)**

**7.5** The Organising Authority shall normally receive two visits from at least one representative of the IODA Executive Committee to review the organisation preparations and report back to the IODA Executive Committee. The Organising Authority shall reimburse IODA all reasonable costs of **travel, accommodation, meals and local transport.**

**REASON:**

To clarify the financial responsibilities of the Event Organizer for two IODA site visits.

**17-07**

**Proposed by the Executive Committee**

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST CONTINENTAL CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 21 FINANCES as follows (changes are in bold type)**

21.2 IODA is responsible for the travel costs of the pre-regatta organisation site **visit(s)**, the Organising Authority is responsible for the cost of the accommodation, meals **and local transport** during **the site visit(s)**.

**REASON:**

To clarify the financial responsibilities of the site visit(s) for the Event Organisers.

**17-08**

Proposed by the Executive Committee

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS**

Amend Item 11 INTERNATIONAL JURY as follows (changes are in bold type)

11.4 For all members of the International Jury, the Organising Authority shall provide travel expenses **from their home to the venue and return, single room** accommodation, **all meals, including dinners separate from the competitors** and local transport.

**REASON:**

To clarify for the Event Organizer what is to be provided for the International Jury.



**17-09**

Proposed by the Executive Committee

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST CONTINENTAL CHAMPIONSHIP**

Amend Item 12 INTERNATIONAL JURY as follows (changes are in bold type)

12.4 **For all members of the International Jury**, the Organising Authority shall provide travel expenses **from their home to the venue and return, single room** accommodation, **all meals, including dinners separate from the competitors** and local transport.

**REASON:**

To clarify for the Event Organizer what is to be provided for the International Jury.

## 17-10

Proposed by the Executive Committee

### CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS

**A). Amend Item 19 IODA Officials as follows (changes are in bold type)**

The Organising Authority shall provide travel expenses, **single room** accommodation, **all** meals that include **dinners separate from the competitors** and local transport for:

- the President of IODA or his nominee
- two members of the IODA Technical Committee or IMs nominated by the Executive, including for up to three nights before the official arrival day.
- two members of the IODA Regatta Committee or IROs nominated by the Executive.

**REASON:**

To clarify for the Event Organizer what is to be provided for the IODA Officials.

**17-11**

**Proposed by the Executive Committee**

## **CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST CONTINENTAL CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 20 IODA OFFICIALS as follows (changes are in bold type)**

20.11 The Executive Committee shall appoint for each Championship an IODA Principal Race Officer (see 11.4), a chief measurer and a deputy measurer (see 13.2) and nominee of the Executive (normally the Vice-President for the continent concerned). The Organising Authority shall provide **single room** accommodation, meals that **include dinner away from the competitors**, transport to and from the airport to the venue, and local transport, in exchange for an adult entry fee.

### **REASON:**

To clarify for the Event Organizer what is to be provided for the IODA officials during the event in exchange for an adult entry fee.

## 17-12

Proposed by the Executive Committee

### CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP

Amend Item 14 ACCOMMODATION as follows (changes are in bold type)

14.5 Three meals per day shall be provided by the Organising Authority for all competitors and other officials, taking into consideration significant basic variations in eating customs, **and shall be nutritionally balanced and food allergy free.**

#### **REASON:**

To clarify for the Event Organizer what is to be provided for the competitors and officials in terms of food during the event.



## 17-13

Proposed by the Executive Committee

### **CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST CONTINENTAL CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 15 ACCOMMODATION as follows (changes are in bold type)**

15.5 Three meals per day shall be provided by the Organising Authority for all competitors and other officials, taking into consideration significant basic variations in eating customs, **and shall be nutritionally balanced and food allergy free.**

#### **REASON:**

To clarify for the Event Organizer what is to be provided for the competitors and officials in terms of food during the event.



**17-14**

**Proposed by the Executive Committee**

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 10 CHAMPIONSHIP ORGANIZATION as follows (changes are in bold type)**

**Add New:**

**10.14 The Organizers shall use the designated IODA Event Microsite. The official name of the championship shall solely be used on the IODA Event Microsite and is not permitted to be used on any other website. The Organizers shall use the Online Entry System for the Registration of Teams to the Championship and shall use the Official Notice Board during the event. Exceptions will be at the discretion of the IODA Executive Committee.**

**REASON:**

To introduce the use of the IODA event Microsites to the event organizers, in particular, the Online Entry System and Official Notice Board.



**17-15**

**Proposed by the Executive Committee**

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST CONTINENTAL CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 11 CHAMPIONSHIP ORGANIZATION as follows (changes are in bold type)**

**Add New:**

**11.14 The Organizers shall use the designated IODA Event Microsite. The official name of the championship shall solely be used on the IODA Event Microsite and is not permitted to be used on any other website. The Organizers shall use the Online Entry System for the Registration of Teams to the Championship and shall use the Official Notice Board during the event. Exceptions will be at the discretion of the IODA Executive Committee.**

**REASON:**

To introduce the use of the IODA event Microsites to the event organizers, in particular, the Online Entry System and Official Notice Board.



## 17-16

Proposed by the Executive Committee

### **CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST NORTH AMERICAN CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 6 PRIZES as follows (changes are in bold type)**

6.1 (b) The 5 best placed ~~female sailors~~ **girls** regardless of their continent of residence;

#### **REASON:**

To standardize the gender descriptions across the organization to be boys and girls and not male and female.



## 17-17

Proposed by the Executive Committee

### CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST SOUTH AMERICAN CHAMPIONSHIP

Amend Item 6 PRIZES as follows (changes are in bold type)

- 6.1 (b) The 3 best placed ~~competitors~~ **sailors**, without gender distinction, whose IODA member is South American. The first of these 3 ~~competitors~~ **sailors** will become the South American Champion and will be awarded the permanent trophy.
- (c) The 5 best place ~~female-sailors~~ **girls** regardless of their continent of residence;
- (d) The best placed ~~male-sailor~~ **boy** regardless of his continent of residence;
- (d) The best placed ~~female-sailor~~ **girl** whose IODA member is South American;
- (e) The best placed ~~male-sailor~~ **boy** whose IODA member is South American.

#### REASON:

To standardize the gender and competitor descriptions across the organization to be boys and girls and not male and female.



**17-18**

**Proposed by the Executive Committee**

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST AFRICAN CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 6 PRIZES as follows (changes are in bold type)**

- 6.1 (b) The 3 best placed ~~female-sailors~~ **girls** regardless of their continent of residence;

**REASON:**

To standardize the gender descriptions across the organization to be boys and girls and not male and female.



**17-19**

**Proposed by the Executive Committee**

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST ASIAN/OCEANIAN  
CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 6 PRIZES as follows (changes are in bold type)**

- 6.1 (b) The 3 best placed ~~female-sailors~~ **girls** regardless of their continent of residence;

**REASON:**

To standardize the gender descriptions across the organization to be boys and girls and not male and female.



**17-20**

**Proposed by the Executive Committee**

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 10 CHAMPIONSHIP ORGANIZATION as follows (changes are in bold type)**

10.13 Access to training facilities shall be available at the venue as stated in the ~~Application~~  
**Bid** Form.

**REASON:**

To correct the reference from the Application Form to the Bid Form.



**17-21**

**Proposed by the Executive Committee**

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST CONTINENTAL CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 11 CHAMPIONSHIP ORGANIZATION as follows (changes are in bold type)**

11.13 Access to training facilities shall be available at the venue as stated in the ~~Application~~  
**Bid** Form.

**REASON:**

To correct the reference from the Application Form to the Bid Form.

17-22

Proposed by the Executive Committee

## **CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 7 APPLICATION AND SELECTION OF THE HOST MEMBERS as follows (changes are in bold type)**

- 7.1 ~~Applications~~ **Bid Forms** by fully paid up IODA Members to organize and conduct the Championship shall be made to the IODA Executive Committee not less than two months before the IODA AGM held two years before the year of the Championship. The ~~Application~~ **Bid Form** is available from the Secretariat. ~~Applications~~ **Bid Forms** shall state the acceptance by the IODA Member, the Organisers and their MNA, of the obligations imposed by these Conditions and their commitment to conduct the Championship in accordance with them.
- 7.3 The Organisers shall proceed with the organisation of the Championship in full conformity with these Conditions, **the terms and details of the confirmed Bid Form**, current IODA Regatta and Measurement Manuals and to the satisfaction of the IODA Executive Committee.

### **REASON:**

To remove the reference Application as Bid Forms have replaced Applications. In addition, the details and content of the confirmed Bid Form becomes a binding document that the Organizers require to proceed with the organization of the event.

17-23

Proposed by the Executive Committee

## **CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST CONTINENTAL CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 8 APPLICATION AND SELECTION OF THE HOST MEMBERS as follows (changes are in bold type)**

- 8.1 ~~Applications~~ **Bid Forms** by fully paid up IODA Members to organize and conduct the Championship shall be made to the IODA Executive Committee not less than two months before the IODA AGM held two years before the year of the Championship. The ~~Application~~ **Bid Form** is available from the Secretariat. ~~Applications~~ **Bid Forms** shall state the acceptance by the IODA Member, the Organisers and their MNA, of the obligations imposed by these Conditions and their commitment to conduct the Championship in accordance with them.
- 8.3 The Organisers shall proceed with the organisation of the Championship in full conformity with these Conditions, **the terms and details of the confirmed Bid Form**, current IODA Regatta and Measurement Manuals and to the satisfaction of the IODA Executive Committee.

### **REASON:**

To remove the reference Application. Bid Forms have replaced Applications. In addition, the details and content of the confirmed Bid Form becomes a binding document that the Organizers require to proceed with the organization of the event.



**17-24**

**Proposed by the Executive Committee**

**CONDITIONS FOR THE OPTIMIST WORLD CHAMPIONSHIP**

**Amend Item 13 BOATS as follows (changes are in bold type)**

- 13.1 All equipment entered shall have a current, valid Measurement Certificate, and shall comply with the IODA Class Rules except that charter hulls supplied by or through the organisers are exempt from complying with CR 2.4.3 (b) and (c) (and hence from CR 2.4.1) but shall be supplied with Registration Books. See also Condition ~~14.5~~ **13.5**.

**REASON:**

To correct a reference error.